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Pilot

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

e A
Originally aired: Tuesday January 7, 2014
Writer: Michael Seitzman
Director: David Semel
Show Stars: Josh Holloway (Gabriel), Marg Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand),

Meghan Ory (Riley Neal), Michael Rady (Chris Jameson), James Mar-
tinez (Gonzalo "Gonzo” Rodriguez), John Billingsley (Dr. Shenendoah
Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson)

Guest Stars: Elden Henson (Amos Pembroke), Will Yun Lee (Jin Cong), Rosalind
Chao (Sheng-Li Wang), Grace Huang (Mei Chen), Jagua Arneja (Jeep
Driver), Michael Benyaer (Badri Adani), Peter Bryant (DNI Carl Rus-
sell), Simon Chin (Huang Fu), Henry J. Mah (Anesthesiologist), Mesha
Toor (Female Officer)

Summary: Before the top-secret technology falls into the wrong hands Gabriel
and his handler must go to any lengths to rescue the kidnapped in-
venter the chip implanted in Gabriel's brain. Meanwhile, Gabriel takes
advantage of his chip to find out what happened to his wife.

The episode opens with Gabriel standing
outside staring at a large satellite, no one
is around, but he can hear voices. He
says "Amelia, where are you?” He appears
to be having some sort of flashback of a
shooting. Two men in a jeep pull up to
Gabriel with guns, and haul him off to a
cell. They want to know why he was "tres-
passing on government property.” Gabriel
is able to disarm the security code with-
out ever touching it, and escapes from the
prison. Dozens of men are chasing him
into the woods and shooting at him. He
comes to a cliff, he is trapped, he has no
choice but to jump over the edge and drop

several feet into a creek.

Dr. Shenandoah Cassidy is home feeding his cat, when armed men in masks enter his house
and start barking orders at him in a foreign language.

Lillian Strand is in her office and Riley pays her a visit. Lillian has called her in to offer her a
job. She gives her a tour of the building and fills her in on "Clockwork,” a human computer, and
an “advanced intelligence agent.” She leads Riley into an exam room where Gabriel is lying on an
exam table. Amos, the computer tech, is checking him for computer viruses. Riley isn’t a fan of
Gabriel, she tells Lillian "whatever the job is, she is going to have to find somebody else.” Lillian
chases after Riley when she storms out. Lillian says that she wants Riley to protect Gabriel.

Lillian heads back inside to scold Gabriel. She is still upset that he almost blew his cover in
the Himalayas because she sent him there to plant a virus, and instead he went looking for his
wife Amelia. She reminds him that Amelia turned against them, and she is dead now. It has been
five years since Amelia disappeared/died and Gabriel needs to "move on.” Gabriel doesn’t want
Riley to "babysit her.” Lillian reveals that she has been protecting the president and his children
for years and she is the best for the job.
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A man enter’s Lillian’s office and interrupts their talk. He says that one of their men have
been kidnapped, a man named Dr. Cassidy. Lillian heads to her tech room and shows her team
a grainy video of Dr. Cassidy being kidnapped by masked men. Lillian wants Amos to go to
Cassidy’s house and make sure his "computers haven’'t been compromised.”

Riley and Gabriel head out to Cassidy’s house to investigate the kidnapping. Gabriel finds
Cassidy’s pocket recorder in his house, he recorded something the kidnapper’s said. "Bring the
safe.”

Dr. Cassidy is in a warehouse with his kidnappers, they are holding a tiny microchip he
created. After he created the microchip that was placed in Gabriel’s head, he made another one.
And, now the Chinese have it. They can create their own human computer. The Chinese have set
up a make-shift surgeon’s room for Cassidy, they want him to implant the chip in one of their
men.

Gabriel’s son Nelson reveals to Gabriel, Riley, and the team that his Dad made a second chip.

The Chinese tell Cassidy that if he doesn’t perform the surgery they will kill either Gabriel or
Nelson.

They bring Nelson back to the office so Lillian can interrogate him about his father’s new
chip. Nelson reveals that the new chip that the Chinese have is stronger and better than the one
that they put in Gabriel. Lillian accuses him of selling the chip to the Chinese to get revenge
because he is jealous that his father placed the first chip in Gabriel and not him. Nelson denies
her accusations.

Lillian’s team pulls a partial plate number off from the van that was used to kidnap Cassidy.
They head out to Chinatown to the last known address of the van. Gabriel and Riley locate the
van in an alley. They find Cassidy’s glasses in the back of the van. A group of Chinese men catch
them going through the van and open fire, Riley takes a bullet in the arm protecting Gabriel. They
run into a paint-ball tournament inside a building. Amos is able to upload infrared via satellite to
Gabriel and he uses it take out all of the Chinese men shooting at them. Reinforcements arrive.
Riley gets checked out by the ambulance and she is okay, just a flesh wound.

Cassidy has completed the surgery, he placed the chip in a Chinese woman. She isn’t waking
up though, Cassidy warns his captors that the chip he inserted has never been tested before and
she may never wake up. The Chinese aren’t happy with him.

Lillian places Gabriel and Riley in a safe-house. Gabriel isn’t happy. Lillian is scared that the
Chinese are going to capture Gabriel and steal the chip out of him. He obviously isn’t thinking
clearly because he is too close to Cassidy. Gabriel storms up to bed. Lillian confides in Riley that
Amelia his wife is a traitor. Riley doesn’t buy it, if Lillian truly thought Amelia was a traitor she
wouldn’t have put the chip in her husband.

Riley wakes up the next morning, and finds Gabriel wandering around downstairs. He con-
fesses that he is "cyber rendering,” he can create still frames in his mind and walk through
them. He is looking at still-frames of Cassidy staring into the van when he was kidnapped. He is
convinced that Amos (Cassidy’s computer tech) orchestrated the Chinese kidnapping.

Riley and Gabriel rush out of the house to find Amos. He has found them though. He is
standing outside. And he has brought the Chinese with him. They want Gabriel since the chip
they stole and inserted into a woman is not working.

Lillian is visiting a Chinese woman in a secluded park. She tells the woman that her highest
ranking officer, Jin Kong, is responsible for the kidnapping. She asks here where Jin Kong has
taken Gabriel and Riley.

Gabriel and Riley are in a prison cell together. Gabriel is tending to Riley’s flesh wound. Riley
confesses to Gabriel that her sealed juvenile file that he found on her was for manslaughter. Her
mother’s boyfriend was not a good guy, he abused them for five years, and one day she finally
fought back. Chinese rush into the room and take Gabriel, leaving Riley alone in the cell. They
drag him to the surgery room, They want Cassidy to remove the chip from Gabriel’s head. Gabriel
fakes a seizure, and manages to overpower the Chinese men in the surgery room.

Amos pays Riley a visit in her prison cell. She renders him unconscious, and tries to escape,
but Jin Kong appears with a gun. He takes her prisoner again, and radios Gabriel and reveals
he has taken her prisoner. Gabriel rushes to her aid. Gabriel distracts Jin Kong while Cassidy
shoots him.

Lillian, Riley, and Gabriel head back to the secluded park to "make a trade.” They hand Jin
Kong over to the Chinese woman Lillian met earlier. In exchange for Jin Kong, the Chinese woman
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gives them information. She says Amelia is still alive, the Pakistanis have video surveillance of
her that was taken less than three months ago.
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Red X

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

( )
Originally aired: Monday January 13, 2014
Writer: Aaron Ginsburg, Wade McIntyre
Director: Aaron Lipstadt, David Semel
Show Stars: Josh Holloway (Gabriel), Marg Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand),

Meghan Ory (Riley Neal), Michael Rady (Chris Jameson), James Mar-
tinez (Gonzalo "Gonzo” Rodriguez), John Billingsley (Dr. Shenendoah
Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson)

Guest Stars: Zuleikha Robinson (Amelia), Nick Massouh (Malik), Tamer Aziz (Za-
far), Cas Anvar (Ibrahim Al-Munin), Joseph David Jones (Lance Cor-
poral), Tom Connolly (MP Security Officer), Yorgo Constantine (Marius
Cottier), Todd Quillen (Security Manager), Lidia Porto (Office Worker),
Joey Anaya (Office Worker 2), Hrach Titizian (Imam), Daniel Zolghadri
(Young Boy)

Summary: CyberCom investigates a terrorist suicide bomb that went off at a
U.S. Marine base. Meanwhile, Riley has to make a fast decision when
Gabriel is unable to complete a task.

The episode opens up in Khost Province,
Afghanistan in which one man is coaxing
another to swallow a bunch of tiny red
plastic balls in order to “get their atten-
tion.” Intrigued? The man who ingested
the tiny plastic balls (which at this time
can be safely assumed to be bombs) is
taken into custody by U.S. soldiers for
throwing rocks at their convoy. The un-
named bomb eater passes easily through
security, before the entire base explodes.

Elsewhere Gabriel is longingly think-
ing back to 2007, a time when his
missing-maybe-dead wife was very much
alive. Sexy-time ensues briefly in order to
A) remind us that Josh Holloway looks

2 great without a shirt on, and to B) pro-
vide a credible foundatlon of Gabriel and Amelia’s affection for each other. Sexy-time is cut short
by Amelia’s cell phone ringing to which Gabriel quips "who ever said we should be perpetually
connected to the internet should be shot.” (I for one enjoy a little heavy handed Irony now and
then.) Amelia has just been actuated to India — she’s not only bummed, but considering leaving
the agency. Gabriel doesn’t want her to change who she is and assures her that they’ll work it
out. But we know better.

Gabriel is yanked out of memory lane by his bodyguard (and new neighbor), calling up to
check on "America’s Favorite Super Weapon.” Gabriel pries for personal information about Riley
and she turns the conversation back on Amelia. All he allows is that when Amelia went under-
cover she went way under.

Back at the US Cyber Command it’s revealed that the explosion at the U.S. Marine base was
the deadliest attack in two years, killing 12 marines and a Senator. The bomber, Zafar Hasani,
and his brother, Malik Hasani, found a way to thwart military protocol; the Cyber Command
team and Gabriel set off to find out how.
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Gabiriel discovers that the bomb was coated in plastic. While Dr. Cassidy is figuring out how
the Hasani brothers were able to happen upon plastic that can be safely ingested, Riley is trying
to figure out what makes Strand tick. She questions Strand’s risky decisions making to which
Strand all but responds with "go big or go home.”

On to the intelligence gathering: airport security catches surveillance of Malik Hasani catching
a cab, Riley offers to call the cab company but Gabriel is all like "um excuse me, I have a micro-
chip in my brain.”

The non-toxic plastic bomb weren’t made for military uses at all, you see, they were made to
make explosives safer. Strand and Dr. C question the inventor of "the bomb so safe to handle,
it’s undetectable,” or "Red-X" to discover that not only can it be detonated remotely, but 2.1
kilograms was stolen from their lab.

While they are trying to decipher out the terrorist’s next target, they stumble upon footage of
Hasani meeting with a man Gabriel recognizes as Ibrahim Al-Munin, an operative with ties to
Amelia, and a woman he is convinced is actually Amelia. Strand, once again, reprimands Gabriel
for being overly invested in finding his wife and not seeing the big picture; reminding him that
his responsibility is to U.S. citizens not to Amelia. Strand urges Dr. C to fix him but he concludes
that controlling human emotion is in fact very different than reprograming a computer.

Riley convinces Gabriel to come back to the Cyber Command and he soon discovers that
Ibrahim Al-Munin’s mission is revenge. His wife was a med student working in a hospital in
Pakistan that was attacked by a PMF strike team, who believed the hospital was protecting a
terrorist cell. They were wrong; she got caught in the crossfire. The private contractors, Phalanx
Global Security, went before congress and received all but a slap on the wrist; the committee
chairman who looked the other way was the Senator who perished in military base explosion.

They set off to Phalanx Global Security headquarters and Strand asks Riley if she’ll be able
to take a shot at Amelia if Gabriel can’t. She hesitates, and Strand tells her that hesitation can
cause Gabriel his life.

At the headquarters Gabriel shuts down elevators while the Cyber com works on shutting
down the cell phone towers, to block the detonator signal. Gabriel goes head to head with Hasani
and Riley trails Ibrahim. Fighting ensues and Gabriel tosses Hasani down an elevator shaft.
Ibrahim makes off in a getaway car driven by none other than Amelia. Riley tells a skeptical
Gabriel that it was definitely Amelia she saw. Gabriel is enraged that Riley would take shots at
his wife. Riley proclaims that Amelia was a threat and she shot at her because it was the right
thing to do, but her face tells us that she wasn’t quite sure convinced that it was.

Dr. C and son doctor work on extracting bombs from the dead terrorist body and uncover only
.5 kilogram, meaning they have more than enough Red-X for another explosion. Then, Strand
and Gabriel basically have the same "Amelia Might Be a Terrorist” argument they had 3 or 4
times already. (It doesn’t get more interesting.)

Gabriel and Riley set off to question a member of the Kabba Mosque community center/place
of worship, who confirms that Ibrahim has stayed there. All while Riley side eyes a cute little boy
named Yousef, who all too conveniently found a hospital tag which fell out of Ibrahim’s bag.

Riley and Gabriel head to the Hospital, under the assumption that it is the final target. A
distracted Riley loses Gabriel, much to her chagrin.

Gabriel enters a room and freezes; the scene becomes distorted as Amelia is revealed. He tells
her that need to get out of there because there’s a bomb, she knows because, of course, she is
the bomb.

He asks her "Why” she tells him he won’t understand. He pleads but she tells him the bomb
is going to detonate no matter what he does. Amelia proceeds to tell Gabriel that she hates him
and that she never loved him. He doesn’t believe her, I'm not sure we are supposed to either.

She tells him that these are the choices she made, but Riley makes a choice of her own and
propels Gabriel and herself out of a window into a lake — saving both of their lives. With no lives
lost of the hospital, we learn that Ibrahim is still at large.

Riley interrupts as Gabriel furiously grieves over the loss of his wife. Riley tells him that she’s
happy he’s alive even if he hates her.

The episode closes with Strand meeting with the young Yousef as she suspects that his dis-
covery of the hospital tag was a little too convenient. She shows him a picture of Amelia, and
he reveals that Amelia asked him to give the tag to the man named Gabriel and he would know
what to do. Strand then rips it up, visibly distraught.

8
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Mei Chen Returns

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

4 N\
Originally aired: Monday January 20, 2014
Writer: Shintaro Shimosawa
Director: Stephen Williams
Show Stars: Josh Holloway (Gabriel), Marg Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand),

Meghan Ory (Riley Neal), Michael Rady (Chris Jameson), James Mar-
tinez (Gonzalo "Gonzo” Rodriguez), John Billingsley (Dr. Shenendoah
Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson)

Guest Stars: Elden Henson (Amos Pembroke), Lance Reddick (Jeffrey Tetazoo),
Annie Wersching (Kate Anderson), Tomas Arana (Adam Weatherly),
Zuleikha Robinson (Amelia), Faye Kingslee (Mei Chen)

Summary: A CIA analyst is off the reservation, determined to sell US intelligence
secrets to the highest bidder. Gabriel is assigned to the case but his
effectiveness is compromised by the arrival of Mei Chen, in his mind.

Let’s begin our night in London and a life
is about to become quite fragile; Kate An-
derson’s to be exact. Apparently, there is
something that everyone wants but is put
away. Tristan wants to know why any-
one would go to such great lengths but
no one wants to be labeled a murderer.
He is now asked at gunpoint to strip and
it is discovered he has some wire on him
and is shot. Kate ends up running to the
Chinese Embassy in London and no one
in America can understand why Kate or
Tristan did what they did. She apparently
has a chip that is super powerful with tons of intelligence.

Gabriel is missing and everyone wants to know where he is but Lillian says he needs a break
from all the stress. They have twenty-four hours to get him to return so let’s head to Mexico.
In a drunken haze, Gabriel comes face to face with what is haunting him. He is stopped from
his daydream by one of the workers telling him that the bar is only for Mexicans. Apparently,
Mexico is where Gabriel had his honeymoon so he is drinking his sorrows away and reveals that
something is wrong with his chip.

Riley has found Gabriel because of his honeymoon photos and wants him to know how im-
portant he is and what a risk he is taking. Lillian is instant that they need to find Kate while
all the super smart people have tracked down Riley and Gabriel. Gabriel tells her that he thinks
someone is watching him, mainly his deceased wife. Riley lets him know that he is not alone and
that he should come home to the people who care about him.

Gabriel’'s chip seems fine and it appears that he is grieving; he starts to believe that she is
trying to contact him. Lillian asks the doctor if everything is okay because she needs Gabriel
back to work and the doctor is completely opposed. He is hooked up to all these wires so he can
access Kate and Tristan; he learns that she mentioned China. He then tells them that she went
to the Chinese Embassy and as he is doing that his brain goes haywire. As he is communicating
inside his head, he sees Mei Chin and knows that she has a chip as well.

It is believed that Mei Chen killed Tristan and is after the same thing that everyone is after: the
stolen hard drive. She survived a surgery despite all of the odds and somehow she has invaded

9
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Gabriel’s brain. Gabriel and Mei know all the same things at this point and she is not working
for the Chinese at all. The thought is that they remove the chip which is like a sixth sense and
that could do him more harm. Yet Mei controls Gabriel’s brain with a sense of hypnosis.

It is now time to send Gabriel off to London because they need to find Kate. Riley believes that
Mei has followed Gabriel simply to be with him, not to get any information. Mei has now taken
her next victim, a woman for no rhyme or reason. It is discovered that Kate held a lot of power
in her position while Gabriel is on the plane with Riley. He cannot sit still and Lillian knows now
that the secrets to the chip were held by Kate. Gabriel sees Mei Chen and believes that it is the
late Amelia so he pulls a gun on her.

Gabriel wants to know what Mei wants from him and at the same time, the feds alert Riley
that he has freaked out. So she does what any co-worker and friend would do; she punches him.
We are now at London’s Chinese Embassy where Mei has full access with her special card. No
matter where Gabriel drives, his bosses are able to videotape in; very technologically advanced.
Kate has this drive as a CIA Analyst and this could mean that she could duplicate Mei Chens.

Gabriel knows that Kate has something on her somewhere he just does not know where. Kate
is still alive in the Embassy but is nearly killed by Mei Chen. Gabriel knows that Mei Chen has
killed the ambassador and captured Kate. Lillian wants to put Gabriel in a cell to protect himself
but he defies her because he has come too far. Back at HQ, they are trying to figure out who
created Mei Chen while she is holding Kate captive. She wants the drive which lays in a contact
lens.

As Mei has finally gotten all the info in her head, she is ready to kill Kate. Both Riley and
Gabriel show up with guns but Mei is way faster than them. Kate realizes that Gabriel is Clock-
work and wants to know why she has gone to such lengths. She was one of the good guys but
now she knows that she will not be hurt by anyone and Riley wants to know where Mei is. Gabriel
and Mei meet up and she lets him know that they are alone in this world right now.

Mei says that they are protecting everyone by procreating and that they were made for each
other. Somehow, with everyone working together, they are able to rid the world of Mei Chen and
Gabiriel is safe. His chip has been turned off but not for long as it is his now. Lillian makes people
aware that Clockwork is okay and that Kate will be indicted. Mei’s little buddy will be going to
jail for a long time. Riley admits that if she had to do it all over again, she would have pushed
Gabriel through the window.

10
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Secrets of the Secret Service

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Sumimary:

Originally aired:

Monday January 27, 2014

Matthew Lau

Rob Bailey

Josh Holloway (Gabriel), Marg Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand),
Meghan Ory (Riley Neal), Michael Rady (Chris Jameson), John Billings-
ley (Dr. Shenendoah Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson)

Lance Reddick (DCI Jeffrey Tetazoo), Tomas Arana (DNI Adam Weath-
erly), Michael Trucco (SAIC Charlie Griffin), Tania Raymonde (Emily
Tyner), Bill Smitrovich (Stanwick Finnegan), Omar Elba (SMI Offi-
cer), Said Faraj (Col Hafez Shawqat), Misha Gonz-Cirkl (Agent Barber),
Vachik Mangassarian (Principal Abubakr), Chloe Noelle (Farrah (Far-
rah Mahar)), Kent Shocknek (Newscaster), Samantha Smith (Susan
Hawkins)

After Syria captures two American journalists, a diplomatic envoy is
sent to negotiate their release. Gabriel and Riley pose as additional
security while their real mission is the rescue of the hostages.

Two American hikers in Syria are ac-
cused of being CIA spies and taken
hostage by Syrian rebels. Clockwork is
sent in to extract the two hikers un-
der the guise of a diplomatic mission
headed by ex-President Finnegan and
with Gabriel and Riley posing as Se-
cret Service agents. Gabriel learns that
Finnegan was the president who initially
signed the order for Clockwork. Riley is
reunited with some of her former Se-
cret Service colleagues, including Special
Agent in Charge Griffin, an agent she had
a romantic relationship with that ended
when she left the Secret Service.Gabriel

maneuvers his way through the Syr1an prison to find the two hikers but is surprised when one of
them reveals that they are in fact CIA agents who were gathering intel on a Syrian scientist they
believe to be a threat to US security. The CIA agent tells Gabriel he and the team must leave them
there and find the scientist before its too late. Although furious at the CIA for not divulging this
information, Lillian agrees and orders Gabriel and Riley to track down the scientist. However,
when they find the scientist, they realize she is actually an American citizen who has been forced
to work for the Syrians. Riley devises a plan to get the scientist and her daughter out of Syria,
but Gabriel insists on going back to save our two CIA spies.

11
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The Rescue

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

4 )
Originally aired: Monday February 3, 2014
Writer: Barry O’'Brien
Director: Alrick Riley
Show Stars: Josh Holloway (Gabriel), Marg Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand),

Meghan Ory (Riley Neal), Michael Rady (Chris Jameson), John Billings-
ley (Dr. Shenendoah Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson)

Guest Stars: Tomas Arana (DNI Adam Weatherly), Peter Coyote (Leland Strand),
Carlos Sanz (Hector Villareal), Robert Curtis Brown (Senator Thomas
Bradshaw), Abbie Cobb (Mackenzie Bradshaw), Alex Alegria (Ramon),
Rene Ashton (Erika Bradshaw), Tina D’Marco (Luisa Reyes), Lucas
Davis (Carlos Reyes), Mike Guerra (Tyler), Miredys Peguero (Naked
Woman), Taja V. Simpson (Lobbyist), Kimberly Whalen (Samantha
Royce)

Sumimary: A U.S. Senator’s daughter is kidnapped by a Mexican drug lord to
stop the sale of a spy satellite to Mexico. Vaughn and Riley are sent to
retrieve the girl while Lillian deals with her father, a mysterious and
powerful man in the Government who has some unknown interest in
the case.

Gabriel and Riley’s next assignment in-
volves rescuing two female American col-
lege students from the clutches of a Mex-
ican drug cartel.

Senator Tom Bradshaw receives an
email with footage of the two college stu-
dents tied and gagged, the video ends
with a warning: "No Satellite or They Die.”
One of the captured coeds is Mackenzie
Bradshaw aka the daughter of the Sena-
tor (Samantha Royce — the second cap-
tive — is simply collateral damage.) Mex-
ican cartel boss Hector Villareal seeks to
blackmail the Senator in order to thwart a
satellite deal from going through. Appar-
ently this satellite is great for border se-

- curity and not so great for the drug smug-
ghng business. Bradshaw chairs the committee in charge of the deal; Hector stands to lose hun-
dreds of millions of dollars if the deal goes through.

Lillian receives this information from a man named Leland who we discover is her father
(which allows a little insight into the tough as nails Lillian, and where she got her bite from.) The
senator doesn’t know anyone is on the case, Leland warns Lillian to tread carefully.

Elsewhere, Gabriel compliments Riley’s new 4-seconds-behind time piece before hacking into
Samantha’s Instagram account for any clues regarding the duos’ whereabouts before the abduc-
tion. Thank god for teenagers and their obsessive need to chronicle their every thought, because
Gabriel is able to locate a photo of a man named Carlos Reyes from her account. Carlos just
crossed the Mexican border not too long ago in a van they suspect is carrying Samantha and
Mackenzie as well.

13
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Gabriel and Riley visit Carlos’ mom who is supportive of her kidnapping, drug dealing son
and asks the operatives to leave. We are then introduced to Hector, who after ungagging the girls
the dehydrated Samantha away, while a screaming Mackenzie protests.

Riley receives a call from a number they suspect is Carlos — they track the number to an
abandoned truck. They find Carlos dead in the trunk of the car, with a phone in his very dead
mouth. Gabriel picks up the phone to find Hector on the other end. Hector calls their attention
to a laptop displaying a barely conscious Samantha. In Samantha’s hand is a grenade, and when
she finally loses consciousness the grenade will drop and explode. He signs off with “tell Obregon
it didn’t have to be like this.”

Fortunately for Samantha, Gabriel was able to track the location and back-flip his way out
of danger. Something about the rescue didn’t quite resonate with me. The high stakes set up
seemed a little too easy in its resolution. It probably was the slow-motion effects. Or maybe I'm
just bored of seeing Gabriel rescue people. Probably, both.

Lillian confronts Daddy dearest, and informs him that Hector mentioned someone named
Obregon. After searching the databases and coming up with nada, she takes another approach.
She tells a story about a Mexican president named Obregon who made peace with an enemy
named Pancho Villa. Obregon was irritated when Pancho became something of a folk hero, and
Pancho was always paranoid he was going to get assassinated by Obregon.

Lillian gets to the punchline, and tells her dad that she knows he has connections to Hector.
He tells her that the U.S. laid off of Hector in exchange for intelligence to take down some real
"monsters.” She pretty much tells him to get his you know what together and put a lid on the
situation.

While Senator Bradshaw is having a very uncomfortable lunch, he gets a call from Hector
who is not pleased that two agents are on his trail (don’t believe him ask Carlos). Hector wants
Bradshaw to call them off or else.

Samantha tells Gabriel and Riley that while captive she heard lions and elephants, and cheer-
ing. Gabriel deduces that a lot of Mexicans watch soccer (I'm not sure you need a micro-chip for
that piece intel.)

Leland calls Hector and offers him a deal; you give the girls back and we’ll give you codes to
the satellite.

Gabriel and Riley get to the drop point to retrieve Mackenzie and with 20 minutes left we can
count on things going all sorts of wrong. Of course, they do. And instead of fleeing the scene Riley
allows herself to be taken along with Mackenzie.

Gabiriel gets his Cyber-rendering on and discovers that Riley left him some clues on the fancy
watch he was poking fun of. She stopped the time, telling them how long they drove after the
ambush. Gabriel goes to rescue Mackenzie and Riley and hesitantly stands down on Hector after
Lillian and Leland’s order to do so. Mackenzie is returned to her grateful parents.

Gabriel walks Riley to her apartment. They exchange in light bantering, in which Riley laments
“you were worried about me.” They say goodnight — and Riley is left grinning like a schoolgirl
after a first date. The sexual tension might be burning sooner than I originally thought.

Lillian calls a smug Hector who is enjoying some time in a tub with a lady. He tells Lillian that
she should have given him what he wanted and that if she wants to do business, she should find
another Mexican. She tells him she already has, before his lady friend in the tub stabs him and
leaves him to bleed out in his bubble bath.
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Patient Zero

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

( )
Originally aired: Monday February 10, 2014
Writer: Michael Seitzman
Director: Adam Davidson (I)
Show Stars: Josh Holloway (Gabriel), Marg Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand),

Meghan Ory (Riley Neal), Michael Rady (Chris Jameson), John Billings-
ley (Dr. Shenendoah Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson)

Guest Stars: Tomas Arana (DNI Adam Weatherly), Ronnie Gene Blevins (Luther
Vick), Sandra Cevallos (Anna Rachey), Carrie Coon (Luanne Vick),
Matthew Jones (Jones), Erica Luttrell (Charlotte), Sayeed Shahidi
(Django), Kent Shocknek (Reporter)

Summary: Gabriel and the CyberCom are tasked to investigate the outbreak of a
deadly virus in Texas caused by a man who was thought to be executed
for killing 2 police officers. In the process they discover a conspiracy
involving the Defense Intelligence Agency’s research into bioweapons.

The episode opens up with the convict in
question, Luther Vick, being put to death.
As his final words, he bids farewell to
his wife Luanne before scorning his "boy”
Tom-Tom and promising to "reach up
from hell and pull him down.” The charm-
ing fellow is confirmed dead shortly after.

Riley interrupts Gabriel’s pull-ups and
lets him know she would have broken
down the door if he took any longer to
let her in. He reminds her about the steel
frame and Riley reminds him that she
has a key. Shortly after, Gabriel makes
a cheap sexual innuendo reminding us
that even micro-chipped enhanced Su-
per Soldiers can revert back to their pre-

h P ‘ ‘f"‘ "

pubescent states.

Down at the Cyber Command Dr. Shenendoah Cassidy and his son Nelson are playing with a
mind operated quadcopter and reminiscing over the original intentions of Gabriel’s chip.

Nelson asks for an apology from Lillian over that time she accused him of conspiring to kidnap
his own father. Lillian basically tells him not to hold his breath to which he excellently whispers
”she’s a Disney villain.”

Chris briefs the team; a deadly virus is quickly spreading, they are unaware where it came
from, and don’t know how to stop it. They do discover that they need the original carrier to
develop a cure and that the carrier often doesn’t initially develop symptoms.

Gabriel cyber-renders a Texas fair/concert to locate any and every person that came into
contact with 'Patient Zero.” He believes that Luther Vick, AKA creepy supposedly dead convict
guy, is the carrier. The team is wary and believes that Gabriel could be wrong. He wants to go
to Texas to find out the truth, but Dr. C is afraid of exposing his most prized prototype to an
infectious disease.

Elsewhere, Tom-Tom gets a visit from the very not dead Vick, who shoots him dead while
Gabriel and Riley investigate the execution room. Riley tells Gabriel that they need to find "the
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drain,” because water can always find a way and so can man. So naturally Gabriel gets on the
execution table, and the machine says that he flatlined when he obviously did not. Gabriel then
intercepts an outgoing text from a prison guard that reads "someone knows.”

As Nelson collects samples of the virus for his father, Lillian tells Dr. C that Gabriel was right.
Dr. C then discovers that this virus is unique and travels through the sweat glands which means
that Vick will infect anyone he touches. They surmise that the virus was engineered to act as a
weapon.

Gabriel hacks into the shady prison guard’s phone as he pleads with someone that he doesn’t
want to go to prison, shortly before, his car blows up. Gabriel discovers that the number came
from the Pentagon. Riley deduces that the virus must be an illegal bioweapon and they chose to
test it on Vick because he was supposed to be dead.

Lillian chats up a General Carter, gives him the run down on the current situation, and asks
him if he knows anything. He plays it coy but within seconds of getting into an elevator, he makes
a shady phone call.

Gabriel and Riley track down Vick while Riley tries to guilt Gabriel into putting on some gloves.
As soon as they enter the house, people start shooting at them. Gabriel whines that he feels
emasculated when Riley tackles him down for protection. Riley mockingly calls him a girl and
tells him he looks pretty today. Schoolyard humor aside, we can’t argue with that observation.

Impressive choreographed fighting and shooting ensues. Gabriel summons the quadcopter —
which saves him from getting impaled by a nasty looking knife. Riley and Gabriel realize that
their attackers were of the U.S. Special Forces variety.

Lillian scolds Gabriel and Riley for engaging with Vick and exposing themselves to the virus.
They visit a quarantine, where a young child’s father just passed away from the virus. There
Riley sees letters posted on the walls and gets the idea that they can learn something from Vick’s
prison letters.

They head to Luanne’s grandma’s farmhouse where Vick discovers that Luanne has been
infected. Luanne might be dumb enough to marry a murderer, but she’s not dumb enough to
put the pieces together. She accuses Vick of being the carrier, and pays for it with her life.

Riley laments about the consequences of screwing around with Mother Nature, well, what was
done to Gabriel aside. She asks him why he would volunteer if 2 subjects died before him, he
responds that he did it to find Amelia.

The duo arrives at the farmhouse and Riley moms Gabriel into finally putting on some gloves.
They discover a freshly stabbed Luanne and capture Vick, but not before he infects Riley. Gabriel
and Riley are thrown into a shed to burn on General Carter’s order. But, of course, they find the
“drain” and escape.

Gabriel and Riley ambush the General’s team and recapture Vick. He attempts to kill himself
so they won’t be able to develop a cure. Riley gets the drop on him. Elsewhere, Lillian is taking
down General Carter where he warns her that monsters are at the gate; she tells him that the
monsters are right here.

At the close of the episode, Riley calls Gabriel and asks him how he feels about the chip now
that Amelia is gone. Gabriel isn’t so sure.
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Size Matters

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

' )
Originally aired: Monday February 17, 2014
Writer: Shintaro Shimosawa
Director: Alrick Riley
Show Stars: Josh Holloway (Gabriel), Marg Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand),

Meghan Ory (Riley Neal), Michael Rady (Chris Jameson), John Billings-
ley (Dr. Shenendoah Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson)

Guest Stars: Tomas Arana (DNI Adam Weatherly), David Marciano (Gordon
Greyson), Francesca Baer (Olivia), Lamont Holmes (Security Officer),
Lucia Sullivan (Nurse), Samantha Cutaran (Audrie), Scott Speiser
(Paramedic), Silvia McClure (Doctor), Tommy Dewey (Bryce Tyler), Yves
Bright (Professor Donovan)

Summary: Gabriel and Cybercom worry Cassidy is the next target when they dis-
cover microscopic robots are infecting and killing leading artificial in-
telligence scientists. They have to find out who it is who’s delivering
the boxes which contain the malicious nanites before it’s too late.

This episode opens up with an seemingly
innocent chat between a professor and
his female student, before the professor
passes out and starts profusely bleeding
from his nose. He’s rushed to the hospi-
tal, but he’s lost too much blood and it’s,
uh, moving on its own.

Back at Cybercom Dr. Cassidy is
claiming that killer microscopic robots
are a scientific impossibility, Gabriel re-
minds Dr. C that he is too. They discover
that the deadly nanites are being deliv-
ered to specific targets in small yellow
packages — all the victims experts in ar-

; : tificial intelligence. The light bulb goes off
and the team realizes that Dr. C might very well be a target.

Dr. C observes that advancements in technology are usually used to wreak havoc, before
quickly backpedaling to exclude Gabriel from that generalization. (Dr. C’'s comment is similar to
Riley’s quip last week about the consequences of messing with mother nature, this surely has
Gabriel pondering the implications of his technological upgrade.)

They manage to track one of the packages, and it’s headed to a former student of Dr. C’s
named Bryce Tyler. Gabriel and Riley set off to Maryland to intercept the deadly package. Bryce
is out of the office, but his assistant isn’t and she falls victim to the killer robots in his place.
Gabriel and Riley bring Bryce to Cybercom.

We learn these nanites are delivered in form of an airborne dust and differ from a disease or
an infection as they are programmed to attach to a specific target. While Bryce seems a little too
interested in Gabriel’s abilities they discover a binary code left in the box, they dig a little deeper
to uncover a manifesto within the code.

With the help of Riley’s experience with crazy manifestos and Gabriel’'s chip they discover a
pattern, and link the manifesto to a Gordon Greyson. Bryce asks Gabriel what he is, and Gabriel
doesn’t seem so sure.
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Creepy Bryce’s reaction clearly gets under Gabriel’s skin; Riley tries to comfort him on their
pursuit of Greyson. They eventually discover handwriting which matches the manifesto. Natu-
rally, Greyson is right behind them guns blazing. They corner him, but he activates a trap door
and escapes (activate eye roll.) Gabriel gets into chip mode and they apprehend Greyson.

During Greyson’s interrogation it is revealed that he used to be a big shot scientist who
claimed he had created something that could eventually render actual people obsolete. Dr. C
seems wary of such of creation but, Bryce chimes in claiming that biological synthesis between
human and technology is nothing to be afraid of. He cites Dr. C’s creation (Gabriel) as proof.
Neither Lillian or Dr. C seem too keen on deeming Gabriel a creation.

Back at the interrogation Greyson is spouting off conspiracy theories, and accuses the gov-
ernment of trying to put chips into people’s heads. Riley looks like she wants to shout "bingo.”
Greyson warns that soon Frankenstein’s monster will walk among us.

Gabiriel loses his patience, shuts off cameras, and uses his chip to try to get Greyson to confess
by way of revealing his personal information. Of Course, Greyson freaks out and blood starts to
spill from his nose. He’s dead and probably innocent. Lillian performs her weekly yell at Gabriel
routine, this time it’s along the lines of even you're not special enough to bypass procedural and
security measures.

Elsewhere, Dr. C and his son investigate the nanites in Greyson’s dead body and conclude
that the nanites could have been activated remotely. But who could have done so within the
walls of Cybercom? Well shady Bryce of course. Greyson was selected as a decoy because he fit
the profile, and his innocent assistant was killed to throw Cybercom off his scent. Gabriel and
Riley set off to confront Bryce.

Back at Cybercom Dr. C’s son Nelson informs his dad that his "phone” is ringing; ”it’s not my
phone” Dr. C responds soberly before his nose starts to bleed. Uh oh. Nelson manages to slow
down the nanites killing process, but is worried because the nanites are able to adapt; once they
start up again they will come back with a vengeance. Dr. C says his teary goodbyes to his son
and his biggest accomplishment.

Dr. C tells Gabriel what he’s wanted to hear the entire episode, that he’s not only a man but a
great one. He tries to rough a cure out of sleazy Bryce before realizing what needs to be done. All
they have to do is stimulate Dr. C’s death, when the nanites think he’s dead they will die. Sounds
easy, right? Not so much considering they have to not accidentally kill him in the process. Gabriel
hacks into the nanites to track their dying process while manic stressing ensues. Dr. C flatlines,
but not really!

A very much alive Dr. C confronts Bryce (surprise b*tch) and threatens him with his own
weapon for a confession. Bryce falls for the bluff (Dr. C was using powdered sugar, not deadly
tiny robots after all.) Dr. C laments that he was never his brightest student and that’s why he
had to murder his competition to succeed. Burn.

Way after the nightly check in Gabriel calls Riley to thank her for not thinking he’s Franken-
stein. She tells him he’s not a robot because robots can’t make decisions — he sort of asks her
out on a date but not really, then smiles like a teenager when she says yes.
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Delta Force

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

( )
Originally aired: Monday February 24, 2014
Writer: Aaron Ginsburg, Wade McIntyre
Director: David Von Ancken
Show Stars: Josh Holloway (Gabriel), Marg Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand),

Meghan Ory (Riley Neal), Michael Rady (Chris Jameson), John Billings-
ley (Dr. Shenendoah Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson)

Guest Stars: Lance Reddick (DCI Jeffrey Tetazoo), Tomas Arana (DNI Adam Weath-
erly), Chad Guerrero (Vicente), Iris Almario (Marcela Leon), Jamie Ze-
vallos (Nestor), Matt Gerald (Norris), Michael Albala (Undersecretary),
Paris Benjamin (Afghan Mother), Yancey Arias (Javier Leon), Yanellie
Ireland (Afghan Girl)

Summary: While Gabriel and Riley are in Bolivia protecting a presidential candi-
date from an assassination, Gabriel is stunned to learn his best friend
from Delta Force is the suspect.

Before the team suits up for their next
mission, we find Gabriel and Riley shoot-
ing off some steam in the firing range. It
seems that The Powers That Be finally let
Chris Jameson leave the Cybercom brief-
ing room, as he interrupts the duo’s light
flirting to impress them with his shooting
skills. This is possibly the first time we've
seen Chris allowed to have anything that
resembles a personality.

Elsewhere, Riley wonders how Gabriel’s
war buddy, John Norris, went from G.I.
Joe to Assassin’s Creed. Riley asks if
there were any warning signs, Gabriel's
says “yeah, it’s called war.”

Cue flashback! On the battlefield, Nor-

o 2 ris refuses to leave Gabriel even though
he’s out of ammo and has been 1nJured After they back talk and say bro a lot, Norris swears that
he has a plan to get them out of this. Gabriel trusts his comrade and covers himself with some
shrubbery, awaiting Norris’ return.

Back in the present, Javier and his wife Marcela, are introduced to Chris and Gabriel. While
Chris works on keeping Javier and his entourage alive for Javier's meeting with the U.S. under-
secretary, Gabriel and Riley set off in pursuit of the man that wants them dead.

Lillian instructs Gabriel and Riley to locate the agent with all the answers, Dale Cogen, the
sole CIA operative in Bolivia. Well, because he’s the only operative in the country, he’s obviously
dead when they get there. Gabriel catches a glimpse of Norris out the window; he calls out to him
before tripping a wire, and blowing the building to pieces.

Gabriel gives Norris a ring and asks him where he’s running off to; Norris warns Gabriel to
back off before smashing his own phone into pieces. Gabriel really should have thought that one
out a little better.

Norris returns to Gabriel, and leads him into a house not too far away. Gabriel wonders where
the inhabitants are until he sees a mother and her young daughter gagged and bounded in the
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corner. Equal parts distraught and disturbed by Norris “plan” he rushes to their aid profusely
apologizing before passing out.

Lillian is less than pleased that Gabriel chose to ask questions first and shoot later, and does
her yell at him even though she knows it’s his shtick to be unpredictable and sassy routine.

Back at the safe house, Chris shows Javier, Marcela, and Javier’s brother the outdated tech-
nology that they are going to use to protect them. I'm not sure if that’s supposed to reassure
them.

Riley is still stuck on what makes Norris tick, but eventually settles with "combat changes
people” before Gabriel argues that is "reveals people.” Still Riley finds it odd that Norris didn’t kill
them when he had the chance. They realize that Norris knows the location of the safe house and
he’s headed there to finish the job.

They don’t make it in time and Chris takes charge of the situation, he hands Javier a gun and
instructs him to lock himself in a room with his wife. Marcela asks for the gun, arguing that she
actually has military experience. There’s something shady about Mrs. Leon, it’s not overly heavy
handed but it’s enough to make you feel uncomfortable when Javier hands her the gun.

After the chaos subsides not only has Norris escaped, but Chris has been shot. Gabriel goes
after Norris alone, and Riley reluctantly lets him realizing she should probably stay and help
Chris not die.

Gabriel apprehends Norris and they continue to call each other 'bro’ and taunt each other the
way boys tend to do. Lillian instructs Gabriel to access the satellite, he refuses and disconnects
from Cybercom — he wants to beat Norris on his own.

Gabriel has Norris at gun point; confident that Gabriel won’t shoot him he’s not too worried.
It’s not Gabriel he has to worry about, as he accidentally stumbled upon an old mine shaft.
Gabriel is able to access the individual mine’s locations, with his chip of course, and he shoots
a couple of targets to demonstrate his seriousness. After a very silly live action rendition of
minesweeper, Norris knocks Gabriel out and takes his weapon.

Fearing their location has been comprised, Norris tries to kill the mother and the daughter
but Gabriel fights him off. With Norris in a headlock, the mother goes to the door and tells the
soldiers she hasn’t seen any Americans, and they leave. Gabriel is visibly appalled by Norris’
readiness to kill innocent people, Norris argues that he’s just trying to survive. Gabriel realizes
the monster Norris has become.

Norris tries to convince Gabriel that he was contracted by Cogen to help protect Javier. He’s
not the target, but Marcela and the brother are. She worked for the president, you see, she’s
planning to assassinate her husband and the undersecretary along with him. After trying to
convince Gabriel that they are on the same team, he baits Gabriel with Riley’s safety and he’s
now quick to trust him.

Back at the not-so-safe house, Marcela is preparing a lethal looking lipstick case and acting
pretty jumpy. As Marcela gets ready to hatch her plan, Gabriel and Norris close in. Riley shoots
Norris as she is not up to date on the alliance shift, Marcela gets shot, and the lipstick bomb goes
off. With her last breathe Marcela chastises her husband for his loyalty to the United States, and
a wounded Chris gets the jump on the brother — shooting him dead. Riley and Gabriel again
marvel at Chris’ gun slinging’ abilities.

Norris is still curious about Gabriel’'s new gig, citing his inability to clear his porn history and
turn on a computer. He wants to know what they did to him; Gabriel only confirms that they did
something for him.
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Athens

Season 1
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 9

4 \
Originally aired: Monday March 3, 2014
Writer: Matthew Lau
Director: Bill Eagles
Show Stars: Josh Holloway (Gabriel), Marg Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand),

Meghan Ory (Riley Neal), Michael Rady (Chris Jameson), John Billings-
ley (Dr. Shenendoah Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson)

Guest Stars: Will Yun Lee (Jin Cong), Charlie Koznick (David Collingsworth),
Alexandre Chen (Bock Wor), Richard Chiu (Jung Ahn), Andrea Grano
(Susan Marsham), Johnny Kostrey (Norman), Bethany Levy (Tech),
Stephen Oyoung (Gunman Bravo)

Summary: Terrorist Jin Cong is back and he is upping the ante by attacking
CyberCom directly, looking for top secret information to allow him to
make his own versions of Gabriel.

At the Cybercom command headquarters
Nelson fights with a rogue printer while
Lillian and Chris entertain investigators
from the Department of Defense. Chris
demonstrates the command center’s so-
phisticated and efficient security proto-
col; the agents don’t seem very impressed
or convinced.

Elsewhere a boyish yet attractive DOD
agent asks Riley out to dinner, she po-
litely declines citing that it would be inap-
propriate. (But we're supposed to suspect
she has other reasons to decline, pos-
sibly, the hunky chipped super-solider
she vowed to protect.) Gabriel thinks she
made the right choice; "he’s not the one” he tells her half kidding. Riley wonders how a person
could tell, Gabriel thinks you just can. (Gabriel Vaughan: Super agent by day, matchmaker by
night.)

With a DOD security audit underway, panic ensues when the computer systems start mal-
functioning. The team grows concerned and ask Gabriel if he’s okay. Not only is he not okay, he
doesn’t know who any of them are.

Gabiriel is taken to a holding cell in Dr. Cassidy’s office; while he continues to freak out, Dr. C
tries to figure out why he lost his memory in the first place. Riley tries to explain their relationship
to him and her uncomfortableness begs him to question whether or not they are "intimate.” Riley
denies it with a little too much fervor.

Dr. C explains that some sort of energy discharge dislocated Gabriel’s memory; it’s not com-
pletely wiped away, just in hiding. But of course, there’s a time restraint — the longer he’s out of
memory, the less chance they have of getting him back.

Back at the completely successful DOD audit they are at security threat 7 out of 10, which
basically means they are in big trouble. To prevent the hackers from gaining access to all the
classified data Lillian enacts the 'Orion protocol,” much to the lady DOD agent’s dismay. Lillian
then instructs Chris to "cut the trunk.”
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Gabriel is having trouble controlling the data flow from his chip, so Riley decides to join
Gabriel in his locked cell (not entirely sure why that is supposed to help, but okay.) Trying to
regain Gabriel’s trust, Riley asks him to access her personnel file.

After Chris does some handy work with an electric saw, all the power goes down — apparently
he severed the incoming optic line and they no longer have access to the outside world. Things
get even better when a freshly broken out of prison Jin Cong shows up (Big Bad from the Pilot,
kidnapped Dr. C and wants to replicate Gabriel’s chip) spouting promises of revenge and adora-
tion for English idioms. Lillian tries to convince Jin that Gabriel is not in the building and that
US special forces are gearing up to lay siege. He calls her bluff, reminding her that he had plenty
of time in prison to plan. He threatens that Gabriel is now their problem.

A tied and bound Nelson wants to know what’s going on and Lillian reveals that she knows
what they are after. They are looking for something called the Athens list; Athens-4U7R is gene
mutation needed for the chip to work in a human being, the children who obtain the gene muta-
tion are on said list. Neither Chris nor Nelson is pleased that such a list exists. Adding insult to
injury, Lillian adds that Dr. C is fully aware of the list.

Jin Cong wants this list very badly, and starts shooting innocent people to prove it. He turns
the gun on Nelson (with Dr. C in on the live feed.) "You like idioms” Nelson asks Jin, well, he
doesn’t have one for you, sorry. Jin is whisked away for super-secret criminal business, and
Nelson lives to see another day.

Gabriel escapes his confinement and takes down two men that were sent after him before he’s
reunited with Riley. Jin shows up as well, all concerned with Gabriel’s well-being. He tells Gabriel
that Riley is the enemy, and urges him to check her files for proof. Her doctored file reveals that
she is a double agent, who disclosed state secrets and endangered the life of the Vice President.
Gabriel cuffs Riley, believing that she is indeed the enemy.

Gabriel teams up with Jin, under the impression that he’s working to protect the list from
getting into the wrong hands. Gabriel swears that he won’t let Lillian and co, implant that chip
into kids like they did to him. Lillian argues that he begged for the chip in order to find Amelia.
Jin, the thorough criminal that he is, altered those files too and Gabriel isn’t yet convinced he’s
working for the wrong team.

While Dr. C suits up for battle, Riley and Chris plan to escape their captors. Nelson wants in
on the plan too, promising he can kick some serious you know what (he doesn’t.) With the help
of a handy, hidden belt knife, and some machine guns, Riley escapes and sets off to find Gabriel.

Gabriel naturally apprehends Riley as she pleads with him that he has to believe her. She’s
able to get the upper hand, but Gabriel tells her she’s going to have to shoot him before he lets
her hurt those kids. Lillian seems okay with letting her shoot him, but Riley puts her gun down.
It's going to be okay, she says.

A teary eyed Riley urges Gabriel to ignore the data, and listen to his heart. Echoing his words
from earlier in the episode, she tells him you just have to feel, and you’ll know. He listens to his
“inner voice” and joins Team Riley. Lillian is less teary eyed and more "about time!”

After using science to prevent Jin and co. from escaping, he meets up with Chris and Nelson.
He tries to embrace his son but Nelson’s disappointed that his dad would put together a list that
could endanger the lives of children. Dr. C says he thought the list was destroyed.

Jin and Gabriel do some fancy fighting, and an exasperated Lillian eventually shoots Jin
down. Dr. C troubleshoots Gabriel’s chip before scolding Lillian. He calls her out for lying to him,
and she argues that the decision to not destroy the list was above her pay grade. Dr. C doesn’t
want any part in this but Lillian says he has no choice, he created it and now he has to help
protect those who might be put in danger because of it.

As the episodes close, Gabriel brings Riley a cup of coffee and thanks her for not shooting
him. An elated Nelson finally gets his printer to work.
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Cain and Gabriel

Season 1
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 10

( )
Originally aired: Monday March 10, 2014
Writer: Pamela Davis
Director: Kenneth Biller
Show Stars: Josh Holloway (Gabriel Vaughn), Michael Rady (Chris Jameson), Marg

Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand), John Billingsley (Dr. Shenen-
doah Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson Cassidy), Meghan Ory (Riley Neal)

Recurring Role: Tomas Arana (Adam Weatherly)

Guest Stars: Alan Ruck (Jonathan Cain), Dean Chekvala (Jano), Laura Wiggins (Re-
becca Strand), John Pollono (Eric Hanson), Monica Herman (Jenna
Hanson), Deena Freeman (Registrar), Tom Konkle (Ted), Ana Lucasey
(Barista), Stephanie Nash (Mrs. Cain), Lou Richards (CEO Shepper-
ton), Brooke Robinson (Hannah), Dante Swain (Alex), Jack Topalian
(Vincent Canello), Gerald Webb (CyberCom Agent Leader)

Summary: After a cyber attack to the FBI's Witness Protection database, Cyber-
Com is asked to investigate. The case takes a personal turn for Lillian
when it is revealed that the hacker plans a terrorist attack in San
Francisco whose daughter lives in the city.

The team learns that a former mafia bag
man turned exterminator was forcibly en-
listed to obtain deadly chemicals, while a
Chechen chemist named Anton was also
forcibly enlisted to develop a dangerous
neurotoxin out of the materials. Dr. Cas-
sidy reveals that these chemicals could
destroy an entire city; the city in ques-
tion being San Francisco, where Lillian’s
daughter happens to reside.

En route they discover that although
the toxin isn’t deadly it does leave its vic-
tims paralyzed. Gabriel tries to comfort

1 Lillian by assuring that her daughter will
— = : ? be fine. Gabriel shares his concerns with
Riley as well; he’s never seen Lillian let her job become personal.

Lillian makes an impromptu visit to her daughter, Rebecca, who is a twenty-something-year-
old painter. They share some tense moments. Rebecca doesn’'t seem shocked when her mother
interrupts her short visit to attend to business elsewhere.

Gabriel and co. investigate an abandoned paint shop, where he notices a security camera.
The hacker calls Gabriel out of curiosity. He wants to know why there is no available information
on Gabriel and why he walks like an athlete. The creepy hacker keeps the conversation short,
but tells Gabriel that they will speak soon.

The hacker (Alan Ruck, aka Cameron from Ferris Bueller's Day Off) turns out to be paralyzed.
Though he fancies himself a super villain, his doting wife begs us to question how he ended up
this way.

Though Nelson and Chris haven’t identified any potential targets, the lab results from the
paint shop reveal that the nerve toxin is in powder form; meaning it is airborne. Gabriel describes
his call with the hacker, he seemed more nervous than curious, and his security cameras appear
to be connecting him to the outside world.
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Gabriel asks Lillian about her meeting with her daughter, and tells her that it’s okay if you tell
her to get the hell out of town. Lillian says she can’t, not when other mothers don’t have access
to the kind of information she does. He tells her emotions don’'t make you weak, they make you
human.

Mr. C and Nelson realize that the hacker’s next step is to deploy the materials. We are intro-
duced to a family, and seemingly the hacker’s next target. Eric Hanson, who is also in witness
protection, receives a cryptic message on his computer while he was paying his bills.

Gabriel and Riley investigate Eric’s home and discover a recording device on his daughter’s
video game. Gabriel gets his cyber rendering on and chips Eric’s laptop, and of course, finds their
locale.

Down at a park, Eric meets Anton and they pull guns on each other while Riley and Gabriel
are in hot pursuit. Hacker man tells Anton to run and he is eventually gunned down. Eric gets
away. Gabriel makes contact with the hacker again, and asks him what made him like this.

Riley is next to chat up Lillian about the situation with her daughter. She tells Lillian to forget
protocol and be her mom. Daughters and their moms fight all the time it can be fixed, she insists.
Hey, she even killed her mom’s abusive boyfriend and they still didn’t talk for fourteen years. Not
really sure how that is supposed to encourage Lillian but I'll just go with it.

Gabriel and co. work to figure out what makes the hacker tick in order to discover his identity.
They locate a Jonathan Cain, and when they do Cain says they are too late.

Cain argues that the toxic isn’t deadly; it's just going to paralyze everyone the way he was
paralyzed. Gabriel notices a framed picture of Cain in a track uniform, and Cain reveals he was
exposed to Miener’s Ataxia in college. He was promised a cure but never received one. His wife
tries to plead with him, but it’s apparent he’s too far gone.

Lillian heeds Riley’s advice and tells her daughter to get out of town. Rebecca wants to know
why, and Lillian all but tells her to not play dumb. Rebecca calls her a control freak. Lillian
agrees with her daughter’s assessment, but begs her to go to her father’s house. She agrees to.

The team try to figure out what good comes from paralyzing other people. Cain figured the
more people that were afflicted; the more incentive there would be to cure it. Turns out that a
pharmaceutical company was in the process of developing a cure, but dropped the project when
it became too expensive. Eric Hanson is a shareholder.

They rush to the conference center where Gabriel intercepts the brief case toxin bomb from
Eric. But of course, it’s on a timer and they have not much more than a minute left. Dr. C says if
detonated the toxin can contaminate the building’s entire surroundings. So first they freeze the
bomb, and then they blow it up. The day is saved.

Riley continues to give Lillian more parenting advice, urging her to let her daughter get to
know her because she would be really proud of her. Lillian appears to be a mix of touched and
surprised by Riley’s admission.

At the close of the episode, Lillian is overwhelmed with emotion by Rebecca’s completed paint-
ing; the two of them on the beach.
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The Grey Hat

Season 1
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 11

)
Originally aired: Monday March 17, 2014
Writer: Heidi Cole McAdams
Director: Tim Hunter
Show Stars: Josh Holloway (Gabriel Vaughn), Meghan Ory (Riley Neal), Michael

Rady (Chris Jameson), Marg Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand),
John Billingsley (Dr. Shenendoah Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson Cassidy)

Guest Stars: Tomas Arana (DNI Adam Weatherly), Kristof Konrad (Torbin Salvi),
Ethan Cohn (Danny), Agnes Olech (Alyona), Octavius J. Johnson (Troy
Ricksen (Cortez)), Sandra Cevallos (HS Director Anna Rachey), Kent
Shocknek (Reporter), Sydney Hall (Drew), Endre Hules (Ambassador
Serge Rudonov), Dan Klass (Director of NRC), Michael Klesic (Bearded
Ukrainian), Konstantin Lavysh (Large Ukrainian Man), Ilia Volok (Do-
minik Salvi)

Summary: When Gabriel and Riley search for an infamous hacker known to cre-
ate cyberworms, they learn their suspect could have been set up and
a much more sinister group has plans to target a nuclear reactor in
California.

The show opens with Torbin visiting his
brother Dominic in Federal Custody. The
two were part of a terrorist group back in
Russia and Dominic is going to be sent
back there to be executed. From their
conversation, we know that neither one
of them is going to let that happen.

You think they’re planning some sort
of a prison break, but it wouldn’t be Intel-
ligence without a bigger threat. The Cyber
Worm in the city’s power grid wasn’t just
about blacking out the city; it was about
shutting down something much bigger
and much deadlier unless his brother is

- - released. I'll also take the time to mention
that this devoted brother is having an affair with hlS sister-in-law. (Trust me, it'll make sense
later!)

At the onset of the blackout, Riley and Gabriel jump on the jet to LA with their computer guy
Nelson tagging along. After narrowing down places running on generated power and accessing the
Internet, they find Cortes’ apartment. Scoping out the place, Gabriel shoots and kills a Russian
assassin who got there first, and a stunned (and very young!) computer hacker has no idea what’s
going on.

Questioning him on the rooftop, the young orphan, who hacked his way out of foster care,
claims he has nothing to do with the worm but will gladly fix it for a hefty sum. The agents
counter with a pair of handcuffs and a trip back to the plane.

Taking a closer look, Troy tells them that the worm isn’t his but a very good clone moving
about the grid to find its target. That target is a nuclear power plant, the worm coded to take out
the safety systems to cause a major nuclear disaster. Right on cue, Torbin sends a video message
to the US government with his demands and the team has to act fast. It will take the worm five
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hours to reach the plant and they need to get through to Troy to find out what else he knows
about this worm.

Gabriel goes outside to have a heart to heart with the young man, using the information
he found out about his older brother. He definitely hits a soft spot; the siblings were put into
separate homes causing Troy’s feelings of abandonment. We're not sure if Gabriel really gets
through to him, locking him in the car to "think about it.” Back inside, Cassidy learns of the
worm’s kill switch code — Troy’s heartbeat. The agents rush outside to see that Troy and the car
are gone. A hacker hacking a car? A bit farfetched but not totally impossible.

Thank goodness for GPS, otherwise Gabriel wouldn’t be able to track him. They follow him to
the apartment of Troy’s hacker friend. He figured out that he was the one who copied his code
and sold it. Citing that many lives are at stake, he demands to know who the code was sold to
and where the "Mothership is.” Before the guy can talk, a gang of Torbin’s Russian hit men burst
in and puts a hole in Troy’s friend’s chest. CyberCom isn’t the only one who knows about Troy’s
worm and his ability to stop it.

Troy runs and hides while Gabriel and Riley try to get inside. Using Nelson’s new Wi-Fi Sonar
program, Gabriel’s chip can see through the walls to get a handle on what’s going on. When they
get inside, he and Riley quickly take them all out and saves Troy again.

Back at the CyberCom ranch, Strand is trying to get a handle on this nuclear situation. She’s
successful in getting an evacuation started, but as the clock is winding down, she pleads with
the government to at least entertain Torbin’s demands to buy more time to find the Mother Ship.
It’s the original computer that sent out the worm and is the only one where the worm’s kill switch
(aka Troy’s heartbeat) will work.

Washington finally gives in and gets the prison on the phone. Their change of heart is a bit too
late because Dominic’s extradition is secretly moved up a day. The terrorist is already sitting on
a plane and the Russian Ambassador has no interest in handing him over. With Strand pleading
with him over the phone, Gabriel and the gang are driving to the tarmac to give him the range he
needs.

The plane makes its way down the runway; they stop their SUV and Gabriel gets out. Tapping
into the plane’s system, he effectively shuts it down. Between the technical difficulties and being
stuck on a plane with a terrorist, the ambassador quickly changes his mind with the promise
that Dominic would be brought back alive.

Strand sets up the exchange dead smack in the nuclear meltdown danger zone, just in case
Torbin tries to renege. Gabriel and Riley have Dominic, Torbin and his gang have the computer
and Troy waits in the car with Nelson, ready to shut the worm down. The authenticity of the
computer is verified with Gabriel’'s chip and Dominic is released. The inmate kisses his wife
and hugs his brother before meeting the wrong end of a knife. (I guess Torbin really wanted his
brother’s wife!) Another van appears out of nowhere and a big gunfight ensues. Torbin hops in
that van, and before they drive off, they set off a grenade in the van where the computer is.

Gathered around a fried computer, the agents have to think fast before they all blow up
together. As they talk about the worm, a missile reference gives Riley the idea of creating a
diversion just as the government does with heat seeking missiles. They decide to create a virtual
reactor to lure the worm away from the real one. So you know what that means - it’s time for a
render!

Gabriel and his chip create the code for a nuclear reactor that packs more power than the
original one and then inject it into the power grid. At first, it doesn’t look like the worm is going
to bite, but it finally does, taking down the fake reactor and destroying itself. The nuclear crisis
is averted, but Torbin is still in the wind.
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The Event Horizon

Season 1
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 12

4 )
Originally aired: Monday March 24, 2014
Writer: Michael Seitzman, Barry Schindel
Director: Russell Lee Fine
Show Stars: Josh Holloway (Gabriel Vaughn), Michael Rady (Chris Jameson), Marg

Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand), John Billingsley (Dr. Shenen-
doah Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson Cassidy), Meghan Ory (Riley Neal)

Recurring Role: Tomas Arana (Adam Weatherly)

Guest Stars: Lance Reddick (Jeffrey Tetazoo), Faye Kingslee (Mei Chen), Peter Coy-
ote (Leland Strand), Patrick John Hurley (Alexander Hatcher), Mark
D. Espinosa (Joseph Bernard), Jordan Bielsky (TAC Team Member),
Noshir Dalal (Waiter), Algerita Wynn (Waitress)

Summary: Gabriel and Riley must prove Gabriel’s innocence after he sees himself
at the scene of a murder in a cyber-render. DCI Tetazoo takes over
CyberCom and relieves Lillian of her duties as he orders a manhunt
for Gabriel and Riley.

This episode opens up with the murders
of a former intelligence director, and a
former deputy FBI director and his secu-
rity guard in a hotel room. Elsewhere, Ri-
ley is breaking into Gabriel's apartment
(not really because she has a key) where
he is recovering from what appears to be
a massive hangover. Apparently, the su-
per soldier is a light weight because he
only had two drinks the night before; Ri-
ley wants to call Dr. C but Gabriel ignores
her mommying.

Back at Cybercom, Gabriel cyber-
renders the crime scene and fortunately has a lock on the suspects identify. Unfortunately for
him, the suspect he’s looking back at is himself.

Lillian demands to know exactly what happened the previous night. Well he was with Riley,
relax, not that way. Gabriel also reveals that he can’t really remember anything. Before the team
can get their investigating on the director of national intelligence shows up trigger happy, ready
to lock Gabriel up and throw away the key.

Lillian isn’t convinced that Gabriel is the murderer, she questions his motive. How about one
of the victims being the man who let Amelia’s killer escape? That might work. Or maybe he was
just remotely operated. That could work too.

Riley and Gabriel are interrogated separately; while an angry agent named Tetazo and Gabriel
throw their male bravado around, another agent throws some creepy, sexist remarks at Riley.
You know, like how he thought she wasn’t suitable for the position because she is a woman, and
her lady feelings might get in the way. Unnecessary misogyny aside, he wants to know how far
Riley would go to protect Gabriel. We're supposed to suspect that it’s pretty far.

Gabriel escapes, and of course, Riley is waiting in the parking lot with a get away car. They
take a break to have the same heart-to-heart they've had every other episode. Gabriel makes
some quips about how he’s a machine, Riley gives him puppy dog eyes and tells him he’s a good
man.
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Elsewhere, Lillian makes a visit to daddy dearest (remember him.) He advises her to look
more closely at the victims to discover the murderer. Lilian than meets Chris, Dr. C, and Nelson
for milkshakes and illegal activity at the local dinner. They agree to play along with the newly
instated Cybercom boss Tetazo, who is now in charge of the manhunt for Gabriel and Riley.

Mei Chen (who is chipped like Gabriel) framed him.

Gabriel convinces Dr. C to lower his defenses in order to lure Mei Chen in. She takes the bait,
and joins him for a double cyber-render session. She tries to seduce Gabriel to the sexy-cyber
dark side with a hole bunch of "we are better” rhetoric. They're both very pretty so naturally
(donning evening wear nonetheless) they start making out.

Don’t start your villainous victory dance just yet Mei Chen, the lip-lock was only a rouse to
distract you. Dr. C was able to trace her location, while Riley got the jump on her. Nelson wants
to hear all about the kissing later, for science!

Gabriel makes plans with Lillian to hand Mei Chen off to her, unknowingly with Tetazo and
co. listening in. Before the rendezvous, Lillian makes another visit to her dad. She wants to know
all about a super secret intelligence rumor called the "flood.” He plays dumb, but we suspect he
knows more than he’s letting on.

Finally, at the drop point Mei Chen tries to warn Gabriel that something isn’t right. He doesn’t
heed her advice and is shot by a sniper on a nearby rooftop, with a second bullet just missing
Mei Chen. Tetazo and his men appear, Lillian is furious but he claims that the sniper wasn’t
them. After Riley helps a very wounded Gabiriel to safety, Mei Chen reveals that things are worse
than he thinks; she was hired by his own government to kill those men and frame him for it.
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Being Human

Season 1
Episode Number: 13
Season Episode: 13

( )
Originally aired: Monday March 31, 2014
Writer: Barry Schindel, Michael Seitzman
Director: Stephen Williams (I)
Show Stars: Josh Holloway (Gabriel Vaughn), Michael Rady (Chris Jameson), Marg

Helgenberger (Director Lillian Strand), John Billingsley (Dr. Shenen-
doah Cassidy), PJ Byrne (Nelson Cassidy), Meghan Ory (Riley Neal)

Recurring Role: Tomas Arana (DNI Adam Weatherly)

Guest Stars: Lance Reddick (DCI Jeffrey Tetazoo), Faye Kingslee (Mei Chen), Pe-
ter Coyote (Leland Strand), Debra Mooney (Mary Vaughn), Bonita
Friedericy (Governor Christy Cameron), Tony Amendola (Parviz Shi-
razi), Kent Shocknek (Reporter), Jeff Corbett (Tommy), J. Downing
(Hunter), Michael Trucco (SAIC Charlie Griffin)

Summary: Now wounded, Gabriel has few options for help. After learning of a
threat to a presidential candidate, Gabriel’s friends rally around him
as they uncover the shocking identities of the sleeper agents responsi-
ble for the conspiracy against him.

A hurt Gabriel is on the run with Ri-
ley and Mei Chin is in tow. Going to the
hospital or a government safe house is
out of the question, so they go to the
only place where anyone would feel safe
— Gabriel's mom’s house. The ex-army
field nurse tends to his gunshot wound
on her kitchen table and Mei Chin takes
his mind to a render of Governor Christy
Cameron giving a speech. Another pri-
mary win could send Cameron to the
White House as president. Before Mei
Chin high-tails it out of there, she tells
Gabriel that the same government people who tried to kill them are going to kill the governor.

Even though Tetazoo didn’t give the orders to shoot Gabriel, he has no problem hunting him
down and bringing him in. Strand tries to get him to focus on the bigger picture: finding the
real people who tried to kill Gabriel. He doesn’t want to hear about that, at least not at first,
and Lillian has no choice but to go it alone (with the help of the Cassidy boys and Jameson, of
course!).

While Gabriel is recovering from the gunshot wound, he tells Riley about the plot to kill the
governor. They have a hard time believing anything that comes out of Mei Chin’s mouth, but she
did have one thing right. She and Gabriel weren’t safe and if someone was out to kill them, then
the idea of a possible assassination of a potential presidential candidate wasn’t that far-fetched.
Mommy Vaughn barges in, putting any doubt they had about the whole thing to rest when she
orders Riley to get to the governor and warn her. You can’t argue with Mom, even if you're a
super agent!

Riley calls up her Secret Service ex-boyfriend who just happens to be assigned to the Governor
Cameron detail. He manages to get her 10 minutes and Riley makes the most of her time. She
quickly tells her about the Hatcher murders and how they're tied to an assassination attempt
being plotted against her. Cameron doesn’t seem that bothered by it but puts in a call to Tetazoo
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and Adam Weatherly, the Director of National Security. Ugh, big mistake! At this point, we have
no idea who’s behind anything and she of all people should've thought twice about making that
call.

Back at the Vaughn house, Gabriel’s mom sees something move outside in her yard. She gives
Gabriel a gun and he slowly makes his way downstairs, taking with him a hairspray can. Indeed,
there is a gunman in the house, and as he moves around silently in the dark, the microwave in
the kitchen catches his attention. Inside is a hairspray can exploding right on cue, sending him
to the ground. Gabriel comes charging in and the two get into a scuffle, with Gabriel losing his
gun. Thank goodness Mommy Vaughn isn’t the type of woman to run and hide, instead taking
the gun and firing off a shot to distract the intruder. Gabriel grabs his gun and shoots him dead.

Meanwhile, Strand calls in her people — Nelson, Dr. Cassidy and Jameson - to tell them about
the program called "The Flood,” where a group of American sleeper agents are trained by Iranians
to infiltrate the highest ranks of government. The only way to find them is to find Gabriel, who
obviously wasn’'t going to any kind of hospital. Dr. Cassidy remembers that Gabriel's mom was
an ex-army nurse and Jameson gets moving to find them. He gets there just in time to find Riley
and sees the dead guy on the kitchen floor. Gabriel sends his mother to her sister’s house and
the gang goes to the Cassidy house.

While they're filling each other in on what went on in the last few hours, Lillian gets a call
from Tetazoo, who finally got hip to the bigger conspiracy. He tells her about a photo of six men
he found among Hatcher’s belongings and believes they are part of The Flood. He doesn’t want
to say any more on the phone but will send the picture to her over a secure network. Just when
I was happy to see that he was playing for the right team, he turns around and gets shot a few
times in the chest. With his dying breaths, he shoots his attacker and sends the photo from his
phone.

When the director of the CIA goes down, it’s time to move and there’s no safer place to be
right now than Leland Strand’s house. Gathered around the laptop, they look at the 20-year-old
photo, the faces of the six men blurred out and the names of tigers written on the back. Lelan
fills them in on the story of the six tigers, the best of the best agents that gathered to take this
picture in Canada.

The blurred faces pose a problem in finding these guys, but of course there’s a quick solution
to that (though it’s kind of hard to believe). Because the photo blurring was done on an old 1980s
computer, the blurs could be reversed as long as they can figure out the code using one of the
faces as a baseline. Conveniently enough, the guy Gabriel shot in his mom’s house was one of
the six tigers. He gets his render on and starts decoding the six faces. The last one was Adam
Weatherly.

Adam gets strict instructions from his Iranian "master” to kill Governor Cameron during her
Pheasant Hunt Charity Event. She’s a big obstacle in their plan to take the White House and he’s
the only one who can get close enough to do it. Not only is he a close friend of hers, he’s also
her hunting buddy. They get their rifles ready and head out into the woods, with the governor
none the wiser. Gabriel and Riley get there 20 minutes later and quickly take the forest to look
for them before Weatherly can carry out his plane.

The director and the governor get into a nice and secluded place and he points his rifle dead at
her. Just as he’s about to pull the trigger, Riley yells out to lower his weapon and he takes a shot
at her instead. Gabriel shoots back and takes off after him while Riley stays behind to protect
the governor. With his wound starting to come undone, he uses the chip to tap into the satellites
to find Weatherly’s location. As Weatherly loads up his rifle behind a tree, Gabriel comes up from
behind and orders him to drop it.

The episode closes out with more Mommy Vaughn and I couldn’t be more thrilled! She’s such
a tough cookie and I wish I had more of her this season. Over dinner at Gabriel's apartment,
she demands to know about what is going on with her son. He tells her about the chip in his
brain and how some people (including him) see him as less than human. He also feels that he
can easily be programmed by someone else. She points out that you don’t need a chip to be
reprogrammed — just look at Weatherly. He was brainwashed as a kid to do some horrible things.
Riley chimes in and tells him the chip makes him more than human, not less.
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0105 (Samantha Royce)

Laura Wiggins...........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn 1
0110 (Rebecca Strand)

Algerita Wynn.......c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiii it 1

0112 (Waitress)

Jamie Zevallos .....o.oiiiiiiii i 1
0108 (Nestor)
Daniel Zolghadri.............oooiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 1

0102 (Young Boy)
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